

Table of Contents

850 Purchase Order	3
ISA Interchange Control Header	6
GS Functional Group Header	8
ST Transaction Set Header	
BEG Beginning Segment for Purchase Order	11
CUR Currency	12
REF Reference Information	13
PER Administrative Communications Contact	14
FOB F.O.B. Related Instructions	15
SAC Loop SAC	16
SAC Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	17
ITD Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale	19
DTM Date/Time Reference	20
TD5 Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	21
N9 Loop N9	22
N9 Extended Reference Information	
MTX Text	24
N1 Loop N1	25
N1 Party Identification	
N2 Additional Name Information	27
N3 Party Location	
N4 Geographic Location	29
PO1 Loop PO1	
PO1 Baseline Item Data	31
CTP Loop CTP	
CTP Pricing Information	34
CUR Currency	
MEA Measurements	
PID Loop PID	38
PID Product/Item Description	
PO4 Item Physical Details	
REF Reference Information	
SAC Loop SAC	42
SAC Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	
CUR Currency	44
SDQ Destination Quantity	
TC2 Commodity	
MTX Text	
SLN Loop SLN	
SLN Subline Item Detail	
MTX Text	
PID Product/Item Description	
TC2 Commodity	54
CTP Pricing Information	
SAC Loop SAC	56

SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	57
CTT	Loop CTT	58
	Transaction Totals	
	Transaction Set Trailer	
GE	Functional Group Trailer	61
	Interchange Control Trailer	
	•	

850

Purchase Order

Functional Group=PO

This X12 Transaction Set contains the format and establishes the data contents of the Purchase Order Transaction Set (850) for use within the context of an Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) environment. The transaction set can be used to provide for customary and established business and industry practice relative to the placement of purchase orders for goods and services. This transaction set should not be used to convey purchase order changes or purchase order acknowledgment information.

Notes:

Revision History –

3/6/08 – Effective 5/1/08 Adding new qualifiers to SAC02 (G860 and C320)

2/15/07 - Effective 3/12/07 -

- Added TC2 segment to SLN loop for Tariff number
- Added N1 loop for Vendor Name
- Added 4th occurrence of PID to SLN loop and PO1 loop for Vendor Description
- Added new qualifiers to SAC02

10/20/06 - Added use of MTX segment within the SLN Loop

Not Defined:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>Id</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	ISA	Interchange Control Header	M	1			Must use
	GS	Functional Group Header	M	1			Must use

Heading:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
0100	ST	Transaction Set Header	M	1			Must use
0200	BEG	Beginning Segment for Purchase Order	М	1			Must use
0400	CUR	Currency	0	1			Used
0500	REF	Reference Information	M	1			Must use
0600	PER	Administrative Communications Contact	0	2			Used
0800	FOB	F.O.B. Related Instructions	0	1			Used
LOOP ID	- SAC				<u>11</u>		
1200	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	M	1			Must use
1300	ITD	Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale	0	1			Used
1500	DTM	Date/Time Reference	0	3			Used
2400	TD5	Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)	0	1			Used
LOOP ID	- <u>N9</u>				<u>1</u>		
2950	N9	Extended Reference Information	0	1			Used
3000	MTX	Text	0	5			Used

LOOP ID - N1					<u>2</u>	
3100	N1	Party Identification	M	1		Must use
3200	N2	Additional Name Information	0	1		Used
3300	N3	Party Location	0	1		Used
3400	N4	Geographic Location	0	1		Used

Detail:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
LOOP ID	<u>- PO1</u>				<u>100000</u>	N2/0100L	
0100	PO1	Baseline Item Data	М	1			Must use
LOOP ID	- CTP				<u>2</u>		
0400	CTP	Pricing Information	0	1			Used
0430	CUR	Currency	0	11			Used
0490	MEA	Measurements	0	1			Used
LOOP ID	- PID				<u>4</u>		
0500	PID	Product/Item Description	М	1			Must use
0900	PO4	Item Physical Details	0	1			Used
1000	REF	Reference Information	0	2			Used
LOOP ID	- SAC				<u>3</u>		
1300	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	Ο	1			Used
1350	CUR	Currency	0	1			Used
1900	SDQ	Destination Quantity	0	500			Used
2350	TC2	Commodity	0	1			Used
2890	MTX	Text	0	3			Used
LOOP ID	- SLN				<u>1000</u>		
4700	SLN	Subline Item Detail	0	1			Used
4750	MTX	Text	0	1			Used
4900	PID	Product/Item Description	0	4			Used
5050	TC2	Commodity	0	1			Used
5160	CTP	Pricing Information	0	1			Used
LOOP ID	- SAC				<u>1</u>		
5260	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	0	1			Used

Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>	
LOOP ID	- CTT	·	·		<u>1</u>	N3/0100L		
0100	CTT	Transaction Totals	М	1		N3/0100	Must use	
0300	SE	Transaction Set Trailer	М	1			Must use	

Not Defined:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Notes</u>	<u>Usage</u>
	GE	Functional Group Trailer	M	1			Must use
	IEA	Interchange Control Trailer	M	1			Must use

Notes:

2/0100L PO102 is required.

3/0100L The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of PO1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (PO102) for each PO1 segment.

3/0100 The number of line items (CTT01) is the accumulation of the number of PO1 segments. If used, hash total (CTT02) is the sum of the value of quantities ordered (PO102) for each PO1 segment.

ISA Interchange Control Header

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 16

User Option (Usage): Must use

To start and identify an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

<u>Ref</u> ISA01	<u>ld</u> l01	Element Na Authorization	<u>me</u> on Information Qualifier	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description	: Code identifying the type of infor	mation i	n the Aut	horization Info	rmation
		<u>Code</u> 00	Name No Authorization Information Pre	esent (N	o Meanir	ngful Information	on in I02)
ISA02	102	Authorization	on Information	М	AN	10/10	Must use
		sender or the	: Information used for additional ic e data in the interchange; the type Qualifier (I01)				
ISA03	103	Security Inf	ormation Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description	: Code identifying the type of infor	mation i	n the Sec	curity Informati	on
		<u>Code</u> 00	Name No Security Information Present	(No Me	aningful	Information in	104)
ISA04	104	Security Inf	ormation	М	AN	10/10	Must use
		Description: This is used for identifying the security information about the interchange sender or the data in the interchange; the type of information is set by the Security Information Qualifier (I03)					
ISA05	105	Interchange	ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use
			: Code indicating the system/meth ceiver ID element being qualified	od of co	ode struct	ure used to de	esignate the
		<u>Code</u> 08	Name UCC EDI Communications ID (C	Comm IE	D)		
ISA06	106	Interchange	Sender ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use
			: Identification code published by tata to them; the sender always co				
ISA07	105	Interchange	e ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use
			: Code indicating the system/meth ceiver ID element being qualified	od of co	ode struct	ure used to de	esignate the
		<u>Code</u> 12	Name Phone (Telephone Companies)				
ISA08	107	Interchange	Receiver ID	М	AN	15/15	Must use
			: Identification code published by the as their sending ID, thus other pata to them				

ISA09	108	Interchang	e Date	М	DT	6/6	Must use
		Description	: Date of the interchange				
ISA10	109	Interchang	e Time	М	TM	4/4	Must use
		Description	: Time of the interchange				
ISA11	165	Repetition	Separator	М		1/1	Must use
		element; thi data elemer	n: Type is not applicable; the repet s field provides the delimiter used nt or a composite data structure; the component element separator, and	to separa is value	ate repeat must be d	ed occurrenc ifferent than	es of a simple
ISA12	l11	Interchang	e Control Version Number	М	ID	5/5	Must use
Description: Code specifying the version number of the interchange control segments							segments
		<u>Code</u> 00401	Name Standards Approved for Publicathrough October 1997	ation by A	\SC X12 F	Procedures R	eview Board
ISA13	l12	Interchang	e Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
		Description	n: A control number assigned by the	ne interch	ange sen	der	
ISA14	I13	Acknowled	gment Requested	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description	n: Code indicating sender's reques	t for an i	nterchang	e acknowled	gment
		<u>Code</u> 1	Name Interchange Acknowledgment F	Requeste	d (TA1)		
ISA15	l14	Interchang	e Usage Indicator	М	ID	1/1	Must use
			n: Code indicating whether data er or information	nclosed b	y this inte	rchange enve	elope is test,
		<u>Code</u> P	<u>Name</u> Production Data				
ISA16	l15	Componen	t Element Separator	М		1/1	Must use
			1: Type is not applicable; the comp				

Description: Type is not applicable; the component element separator is a delimiter and not a data element; this field provides the delimiter used to separate component data elements within a composite data structure; this value must be different than the data element separator and the segment terminator

GS Functional Group Header

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

To indicate the beginning of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> GS01	<u>ld</u> 479	Element Name Functional Identifier Code	Req M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		Description: Code identifying a group of appl	ication r	elated tra	nsaction sets		
		CodeNamePOPurchase Order (850)					
GS02	142	Application Sender's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use	
		Description: Code identifying party sending to	ransmiss	sion; code	es agreed to by	trading partners	
GS03	124	Application Receiver's Code	М	AN	2/15	Must use	
		Description: Code identifying party receiving partners	transmis	ssion; cod	des agreed to b	by trading	
GS04	373	Date	М	DT	8/8	Must use	
		Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDE calendar year) where	CC repre	sents the first	two digits of the	
GS05	337	Time	М	TM	4/8	Must use	
		Description: Time expressed in 24-hour clock HHMMSSD, or HHMMSSDD, where H = hours seconds (00-59) and DD = decimal seconds; clenths (0-9) and DD = hundredths (00-99)	s (00-23), M = mi	nutes (00-59),	S = integer	
GS06	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use	
		Description: Assigned number originated and	d mainta	ined by th	ne sender		
GS07	455	Responsible Agency Code	М	ID	1/2	Must use	
		Description: Code identifying the issuer of the Data Element 480	e standa	rd; this c	ode is used in o	conjunction with	
		CodeNameXAccredited Standards Committee	e X12				
GS08	480	Version / Release / Industry Identifier Code	М	AN	1/12	Must use	
	Description: Code indicating the version, release, subrelease, and industry identifier of the EDI standard being used, including the GS and GE segments; if code in DE455 in GS segment is X, then in DE 480 positions 1-3 are the version number; positions 4-6 are the release and subrelease, level of the version; and positions 7-12 are the industry or trade association identifiers (optionally assigned by user); if code in DE455 in GS segment is T, then other formats are allowed						
		Code Name 005010 Standards Approved for Publica	ation by	ASC X12	Procedures Ro	eview Board	

through October 2003

Semantics:

- 1. GS04 is the group date.
- 2. GS05 is the group time.
- 3. The data interchange control number GS06 in this header must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group trailer, GE02.

Comments:

1. A functional group of related transaction sets, within the scope of X12 standards, consists of a collection of similar transaction sets enclosed by a functional group header and a functional group trailer.

ST Transaction Set Header

Pos: 0100 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

To indicate the start of a transaction set and to assign a control number

Element Summary:

Ref ST01	<u>ld</u> 143	Element Name Transaction Set Identifier Code			Type ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
		Description: Code uniquely identifying a Transaction Set							
		<u>Code</u> 850	<u>Name</u> Purchase Order						
ST02	329	Transactio	n Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use		
		Description: Identifying control number that must be unique within the transaction set functional group assigned by the originator for a transaction set							

Semantics:

- 1. The transaction set identifier (ST01) is used by the translation routines of the interchange partners to select the appropriate transaction set definition (e.g., 810 selects the Invoice Transaction Set).
- The implementation convention reference (ST03) is used by the translation routines of the interchange partners
 to select the appropriate implementation convention to match the transaction set definition. When used, this
 implementation convention reference takes precedence over the implementation reference specified in the
 GS08.

BEG Beginning Segment for Purchase Order

Pos: 0200 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

To indicate the beginning of the Purchase Order Transaction Set and transmit identifying numbers and dates

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Na	<u>me</u>	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>		
BEG01	353	Transaction	Set Purpose Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use		
		Description: Code identifying purpose of transaction set							
		<u>Code</u> 00	<u>Name</u> Original						
BEG02	92	Purchase O	rder Type Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use		
		Description: Code specifying the type of Purchase Order							
		<u>Code</u> SA	<u>Name</u> Stand-alone Order						
BEG03	324	Purchase O	rder Number	М	AN	1/22	Must use		
		Description	: Identifying number for Purchase	Order a	ssigned b	oy the orderer/p	ourchaser		
BEG05	373	Date		М	DT	8/8	Must use		
		Description calendar year	: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD ar	where (CC repre	sents the first t	two digits of the		

Semantics:

1. BEG05 is the date assigned by the purchaser to purchase order.

CUR Currency

Pos: 0400 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the currency (dollars, pounds, francs, etc.) used in a transaction

<u>Ref</u> CUR01	<u>ld</u> 98	<u>Element Name</u> Entity Identifier Code		Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
		Description individual	: Code identifying an organizationa	al entity,	a physic	al location, pro	perty or an		
		<u>Code</u> BY	Name Buying Party (Purchaser)						
CUR02	100	Currency C	ode	М	ID	3/3	Must use		
		Description: Code (Standard ISO) for country in whose currency the charges are specified							

REF Reference Information

Pos: 0500 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

To specify identifying information

<u>Ref</u> REF01	<u>ld</u> 128	Element N Reference	<u>ame</u> Identification Qualifier	Req M	Type ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification						
		<u>Code</u> IA	<u>Name</u> Internal Vendor Number					
REF02	127	Reference	Identification	М	AN	1/50	Must use	
		•	n: Reference information as define erence Identification Qualifier	ed for a p	articular [·]	Transaction Se	et or as specified	

PER Administrative Communications Contact

Pos: 0600 Max: 2 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 6

User Option (Usage): Used

To identify a person or office to whom administrative communications should be directed

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Na		Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
PER01	366	Contact Fur	nction Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description	: Code identifying the major duty of	or respor	nsibility o	f the person o	r group named
		<u>Code</u> AA BD	Name Authorized Representative Buyer Name or Department				
PER02	93	Name		0	AN	1/60	Used
		Description	: Free-form name				
PER03	365	Communica	tion Number Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description	: Code identifying the type of com	municati	on numb	er	
		<u>Code</u> TE	<u>Name</u> Telephone				
PER04	364	Communica	tion Number	Χ	AN	1/256	Used
		Description applicable	: Complete communications numb	er includ	ding cour	ntry or area co	de when
PER07	365	Communica	tion Number Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description	: Code identifying the type of com	municati	on numb	er	
		<u>Code</u> EM	<u>Name</u> Electronic Mail				
PER08	364	Communica	tion Number	Χ	AN	1/256	Used
		Description applicable	: Complete communications numb	er includ	ding cour	ntry or area co	de when

Syntax Rules:

- 1. P0304 If either PER03 or PER04 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0708 If either PER07 or PER08 is present, then the other is required.

FOB F.O.B. Related Instructions

Pos: 0800 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify transportation instructions relating to shipment

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> FOB01	<u>ld</u> 146	Element Na Shipment M	<u>me</u> lethod of Payment	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description	Description: Code identifying payment term			charges	
		Code CC CF PC PP	Name Collect Collect, Freight Credited Back to Prepaid but Charged to Custome Prepaid (by Seller)		ner		
FOB02	309	Location Qu	ualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description	: Code identifying type of location				
		<u>Code</u> DE	Name Destination (Shipping)				
FOB03	352	Description		0	AN	1/80	Used
		Description	: A free-form description to clarify	the relat	ed data	elements and t	heir content

Syntax Rules:

1. C0302 - If FOB03 is present, then FOB02 is required.

Semantics:

- 1. FOB01 indicates which party will pay the carrier.
- 2. FOB02 is the code specifying transportation responsibility location.

Loop SAC

Pos: 1200 Repeat: 11

Optional

Loop: SAC Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
1200	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	М	1		Must use

SAC Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information

Pos: 1200 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: SAC Elements: 8

User Option (Usage): Must use

To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

<u>Ref</u> SAC01	<u>ld</u> 248	Element Na Allowance o	<u>me</u> or Charge Indicator	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 1/1	<u>Usage</u> Must use			
		Description: Code which indicates an allowance or charge for the service specified								
		<u>Code</u> A C	<u>Name</u> Allowance Charge							
SAC02	1300	Service, Pro Code	omotion, Allowance, or Charge	М	ID	4/4	Must use			
		Description: Code identifying the service, promotion, allowance, or charge								
		Code A260 B720 C000 C300	Name Advertising Allowance Cooperative Advertising/Mercha Defective Allowance Discount - Special User Note 1: Used for Seasonal Discounts	ndising	Allowanc	e (Performano	ee)			
		C310	Discount							
		C320	Display Allowance User Note 1: Vendor Buy							
		D240 G860 H000 I170 I530	Freight Shrink Allowance Special Allowance Trade Discount Volume Discount							
SAC05	610	Amount		0	N2	1/15	Used			
		Description	: Monetary amount							
SAC06	378	Allowance/0	Charge Percent Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/1	Used			
		Description	: Code indicating on what basis all	lowance	or charg	e percent is ca	alculated			
		<u>Code</u> 3	Name Discount/Gross							
SAC07	332	Percent, De	cimal Format	Χ	R	1/6	Used			

		Description: Percent given in decimal fo 100%)	rmat (e.g., 0.	0 through	100.0 represe	ents 0% through
SAC08	118	Rate	0	R	1/9	Used
		Description: Rate expressed in the stand	dard moneta	ry denomii	nation for the	currency specified
SAC12	331	Allowance or Charge Method of Handle Code	ing O	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code indicating method of	handling for a	an allowan	ce or charge	
		Code Name 02 Off Invoice				
SAC15	352	Description	Χ	AN	1/80	Used
		Description: A free-form description to c	larify the rela	ted data e	lements and	their content

Syntax Rules:

1. P0607 - If either SAC06 or SAC07 is present, then the other is required.

ITD Terms of Sale/Deferred Terms of Sale

Pos: 1300 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 7

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify terms of sale

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> ITD01	<u>ld</u> 336	Element Name Terms Type Code		<mark>leq</mark> M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use		
11001	330	Description: Code identifying type of payment terms							
		CodeName14Previously agr41Letter of Credi	reed upon	1113					
ITD02	333	Terms Basis Date Code	1	М	ID	1/2	Must use		
		Description: Code identifyin	g the beginning of the	e term	ns period				
		CodeName1Ship Date2Delivery Date							
ITD03	338	Terms Discount Percent	(0	R	1/6	Used		
		Description: Terms discoun an invoice is paid on or before			•	ent, available to	the purchaser if		
ITD05	351	Terms Discount Days Due		Χ	N0	1/3	Used		
		Description: Number of day discount is earned	s in the terms discour	nt per	iod by wl	nich payment i	s due if terms		
ITD07	386	Terms Net Days	(0	N0	1/3	Used		
		Description: Number of day	s until total invoice an	nount	is due (d	discount not ap	oplicable)		
ITD10	389	Deferred Amount Due		Χ	N2	1/10	Used		
		Description: Deferred amou	ınt due for payment						
ITD12	352	Description	(0	AN	1/80	Used		
		Description: A free-form des	scription to clarify the	relate	ed data e	lements and th	neir content		

Syntax Rules:

1. L03040513 - If ITD03 is present, then at least one of ITD04, ITD05 or ITD13 is required.

Date/Time Reference DTM

Pos: 1500 Max: 3 **Heading - Optional** Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify pertinent dates and times

Element Summary:

Ref DTM01	<u>ld</u> 374	Element N Date/Time		Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description	on: Code specifying type of date or	time, or b	ooth date	and time	
		<u>Code</u>	<u>Name</u>				
		001	Cancel After				
		002	Delivery Requested				
		010	Requested Ship				
DTM02	373	Date		М	DT	8/8	Must use

Description: Date expressed as CCYYMMDD where CC represents the first two digits of the

calendar year

TD5 Carrier Details (Routing Sequence/Transit Time)

Pos: 2400 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N/A Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the carrier and sequence of routing and provide transit time information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> TD501	<u>ld</u> 133	Element Na Routing Sec	<u>me</u> quence Code	Req O	Type ID	Min/Max 1/2	<u>Usage</u> Used
		Description	: Code describing the relationship	of a car	rier to a s	pecific shipme	nt movement
		<u>Code</u> 1 B	Name 1st Carrier after Origin Carrier Origin/Delivery Carrier (Any Mod	de)			
TD502	66	Identification	n Code Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description Code (67)	: Code designating the system/me	thod of	code stru	cture used for I	dentification
		<u>Code</u> 2	Name Standard Carrier Alpha Code (S	CAC)			
TD503	67	Identification	n Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			
TD504	91	Transportat	ion Method/Type Code	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description	: Code specifying the method or ty	pe of tra	ansportati	ion for the ship	ment
		Code C M U	Name Consolidation Motor (Common Carrier) Private Parcel Service				
TD505	387	Routing		Χ	AN	1/35	Used
		•	: Free-form description of the routi arrier's identity	ng or re	quested r	outing for ship	ment, or the

Syntax Rules:

- 1. R0204050612 At least one of TD502, TD504, TD505, TD506 or TD512 is required.
- 2. C0203 If TD502 is present, then TD503 is required.

Comments:

1. When specifying a routing sequence to be used for the shipment movement in lieu of specifying each carrier within the movement, use TD502 to identify the party responsible for defining the routing sequence, and use TD503 to identify the actual routing sequence, specified by the party identified in TD502.

Loop N9

Pos: 2950 Repeat: 1 Optional

Loop: N9 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
2950	N9	Extended Reference Information	0	1		Used
3000	MTX	Text	Ο	5		Used

N9 Extended Reference Information

Pos: 2950 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To transmit identifying information as specified by the Reference Identification Qualifier

<u>Ref</u> N901	<u>ld</u> 128	Element Name Reference Ide	<u>e</u> entification Qualifier	Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use	
		Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification						
			<u>Name</u> Agreement Number					
N903	369	Free-form Des	scription	М	AN	1/45	Must use	
		Description: F	ree-form descriptive text					

MTX Text

Pos: 3000 Max: 5 Heading - Optional Loop: N9 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify textual data

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	<u>Min/Max</u>	<u>Usage</u>
MTX02	1551	Textual Data	M	AN	1/4096	Must use

Description: To transmit large volumes of message text

Loop N1

Pos: 3100 Repeat: 2 Optional

Loop: N1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
3100	N1	Party Identification	M	1		Must use
3200	N2	Additional Name Information	0	1		Used
3300	N3	Party Location	0	1		Used
3400	N4	Geographic Location	0	1		Used

N1 Party Identification

Pos: 3100 Max: 1 Heading - Mandatory Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Must use

To identify a party by type of organization, name, and code

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> N101	<u>ld</u> 98	Element Nar Entity Identi		Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description individual	: Code identifying an organizationa	al entity,	a physic	al location, pro	perty or an
		<u>Code</u> ST VN	<u>Name</u> Ship To Vendor				
N102	93	Name		Χ	AN	1/60	Used
		Description	: Free-form name				
N103	66	Identificatio	n Code Qualifier	Χ	ID	1/2	Used
		Description Code (67)	: Code designating the system/me	thod of o	code stru	cture used for	Identification
		<u>Code</u> 92	Name Assigned by Buyer or Buyer's Ag	gent			
N104	67	Identificatio	n Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			

Syntax Rules:

- 1. R0203 At least one of N102 or N103 is required.
- 2. P0304 If either N103 or N104 is present, then the other is required.

Comments:

1. This segment, used alone, provides the most efficient method of providing organizational identification. To obtain this efficiency the "ID Code" (N104) must provide a key to the table maintained by the transaction processing party.

N2 Additional Name Information

Pos: 3200 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify additional names

Element Summary:

 Ref
 Id
 Element Name
 Req
 Type
 Min/Max
 Usage

 N201
 93
 Name
 M
 AN
 1/60
 Must use

Description: Free-form name

N3 Party Location

Pos: 3300 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the location of the named party

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
N301	166	Address Information	М	AN	1/55	Must use
		Description: Address information				
N302	166	Address Information	0	AN	1/55	Used
		Description: Address information				

N4 Geographic Location

Pos: 3400 Max: 1 Heading - Optional Loop: N1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the geographic place of the named party

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> N401	<u>ld</u> 19	Element Name City Name	Req O	<u>Type</u> AN	Min/Max 2/30	<u>Usage</u> Used
		Description: Free-form text for city name				
N402	156	State or Province Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code (Standard State/Province)	as defin	ed by ap	propriate gove	nment agency
N403	116	Postal Code	0	ID	3/15	Used
		Description: Code defining international posta (zip code for United States)	al zone d	code excl	uding punctuat	ion and blanks
N404	26	Country Code	Χ	ID	2/3	Used
		Description: Code identifying the country				

Comments:

^{1.} N402 is required only if city name (N401) is in the U.S. or Canada.

Loop PO1

Pos: 0100

Repeat: 100000

Mandatory

Loop: PO1 Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

To specify basic and most frequently used line item data

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
0100	PO1	Baseline Item Data	M	1		Must use
0400		Loop CTP	0		2	Used
0490	MEA	Measurements	0	1		Used
0500		Loop PID	0		4	Used
0900	PO4	Item Physical Details	0	1		Used
1000	REF	Reference Information	0	2		Used
1300		Loop SAC	0		3	Used
1900	SDQ	Destination Quantity	0	500		Used
2350	TC2	Commodity	0	1		Used
2890	MTX	Text	0	3		Used
4700		Loop SLN	0		1000	Used

PO1 Baseline Item Data

Pos: 0100 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: PO1 Elements: 11

User Option (Usage): Must use

To specify basic and most frequently used line item data

<u>Ref</u> PO102	<u>ld</u> 380	Element Na Quantity	<u>me</u>	Req M	Type R	Min/Max 1/15	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity				
PO103	355	Unit or Basi	is for Measurement Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		-	: Code specifying the units in which surement has been taken	ch a valu	ıe is bein	g expressed, o	r manner in
		<u>Code</u> AS EA	Name Assortment Each				
PO104	212	Unit Price		М	R	1/17	Must use
		Description					
PO106	235	Product/Sei	rvice ID Qualifier	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description Product/Serv	: Code identifying the type/source vice ID (234)	of the d	escriptiv	e number used	in
		<u>Code</u> IN	<u>Name</u> Buyer's Item Number				
PO107	234	Product/Sei	rvice ID	М	AN	1/48	Must use
		Description	: Identifying number for a product	or servi	ce		
PO108	235	Product/Ser	rvice ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description Product/Serv	: Code identifying the type/source vice ID (234)	of the d	escriptive	e number used	in
		<u>Code</u> VA	Name Vendor's Style Number				
PO109	234	Product/Ser	rvice ID	Χ	AN	1/48	Used
		Description	: Identifying number for a product	or servi	ce		
PO110	235	Product/Sei	rvice ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		Description: Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in Product/Service ID (234)					in
		<u>Code</u> EN UP	Name EAN/UCC - 13 UCC - 12				
PO111	234	Product/Sei	rvice ID	Χ	AN	1/48	Used
		Description	: Identifying number for a product	or servi	ce		

PO112 235 Product/Service ID Qualifier X ID 2/2 Used

Description: Code identifying the type/source of the descriptive number used in

Product/Service ID (234)

Code Name

UK GTIN 14-digit Data Structure

PO113 234 Product/Service ID X AN 1/48 Used

Description: Identifying number for a product or service

Syntax Rules:

1. P0607 - If either PO106 or PO107 is present, then the other is required.

2. P0809 - If either PO108 or PO109 is present, then the other is required.

3. P1011 - If either PO110 or PO111 is present, then the other is required.

4. P1213 - If either PO112 or PO113 is present, then the other is required.

Semantics:

1. PO102 is quantity ordered.

Loop CTP

Pos: 0400 Repeat: 2

Optional

Loop: CTP Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify pricing information

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
0400	CTP	Pricing Information	0	1		Used
0430	CUR	Currency	0	1		Used

CTP Pricing Information

Pos: 0400 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: CTP Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify pricing information

Element Summary:

Ref CTP02	<u>ld</u> 236	Element Name Price Identifier Code Description: Code identifying pricing specific	Req X	Type ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Used
		CodeNameRESResaleUCPUnit cost price				
CTP03	212	Unit Price	Χ	R	1/17	Used
		Description: Price per unit of product, service	e, commo	odity, etc.		
CTP04	380	Quantity	Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
CTP05	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	Χ	Comp		Used
		Description: To identify a composite unit of measure (See Figures Appendix for example use) Comments: 1. If C001-02 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 2. If C001-03 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 3. If C001-05 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 4. If C001-06 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 5. If C001-08 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 6. If C001-09 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 7. If C001-11 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 8. If C001-12 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 9. If C001-15 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1.				
	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code specifying the units in wh which a measurement has been taken	ich a valu	ue is being	g expressed, o	r manner in
		Code Name				

Syntax Rules:

1. P0405 - If either CTP04 or CTP05 is present, then the other is required.

Each

Monetary Value

EΑ

CUR Currency

Pos: 0430 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: CTP Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the currency (dollars, pounds, francs, etc.) used in a transaction

<u>Ref</u> CUR01	<u>ld</u> 98	Element Name Entity Identifier Code		Req M	Type ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description individual	n: Code identifying an organization	al entity,	a physic	cal location, pro	perty or an
		<u>Code</u> BY	<u>Name</u> Buying Party (Purchaser)				
CUR02	100	Currency C	Code	М	ID	3/3	Must use
		Description	1: Code (Standard ISO) for country	in whos	e curren	cy the charges	are specified

MEA Measurements

Pos: 0490 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: PO1 Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify physical measurements or counts, including dimensions, tolerances, variances, and weights(See Figures Appendix for example of use of C001)

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> MEA01	<u>ld</u> 737		lement Name easurement Reference ID Code		<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Used
		Description	: Code identifying the broad categ	ory to w	hich a me	easurement ap	plies
		<u>Code</u> PD	Name Physical Dimensions				
MEA02	738	Measureme	nt Qualifier	0	ID	1/3	Used
		Description measuremer	: Code identifying a specific produ nt applies	ct or pro	ocess cha	aracteristic to w	hich a
		<u>Code</u> WT	<u>Name</u> Weight				
MEA03	739	Measureme	nt Value	Χ	R	1/20	Used
		Description	: The value of the measurement				
MEA04	C001	Composite	Unit of Measure	Χ	Comp		Used
		Description: To identify a composite unit of measure (See Figures Appendix for exaruse) Comments: 1. If C001-02 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 2. If C001-03 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 3. If C001-05 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 4. If C001-06 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 5. If C001-08 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 6. If C001-09 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 7. If C001-11 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 8. If C001-12 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1. 9. If C001-15 is not used, its value is to be interpreted as 1.					or examples of
	355	Unit or Basi	s for Measurement Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
			: Code specifying the units in whic surement has been taken	h a valu	ue is bein	g expressed, o	r manner in
		<u>Code</u> GR	<u>Name</u> Gram				

Syntax Rules:

1. R03050608 - At least one of MEA03, MEA05, MEA06 or MEA08 is required.

Semantics:

1. MEA04 defines the unit of measure for MEA03, MEA05, and MEA06.

Loop PID

Pos: 0500 Repeat: 4

Optional

Loop: PID Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
0500	PID	Product/Item Description	M	1		Must use

PID Product/Item Description

Pos: 0500 Max: 1 Detail - Mandatory Loop: PID Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Must use

To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Na	<u>me</u>	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
PID01	349	Item Descri	ption Type	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description	: Code indicating the format of a d	escriptio	n		
		<u>Code</u> F	<u>Name</u> Free-form				
PID02	750	Product/Pro	cess Characteristic Code	М	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description: Code identifying the general class of a product or process characteristic					
		Code	<u>Name</u>				
		08	Product				
		74	Vendor size description				
		75	Buyer's Color Description				
		GEN	General Description				
PID05	352	Description		М	AN	1/80	Must use
		Description	: A free-form description to clarify	the relat	ed data	elements and t	heir content

PO4 Item Physical Details

Pos: 0900 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: PO1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the physical qualities, packaging, weights, and dimensions relating to the item

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
PO401	356	Pack	M	N0	1/6	Must use
		Description: The number of inner containers, containers, per outer container	or numb	er of eac	ches if there ar	e no inner
PO414	810	Inner Pack	0	N0	1/6	Used
		Description: The number of eaches per inner	containe	er		

Reference Information

Pos: 1000 Max: 2 **Detail - Optional** Loop: PO1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify identifying information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u> REF01	<u>ld</u> 128		ment Name Ference Identification Qualifier		<u>Type</u> ID	<u>Min/Max</u> 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use				
		Description	Description: Code qualifying the Reference Identification								
		<u>Code</u> DP PG	Name Department Number Product Group								
REF02	127	Reference	e Identification	М	AN	1/50	Must use				

Description: Reference information as defined for a particular Transaction Set or as specified

Loop SAC

Pos: 1300 Repeat: 3

Optional

Loop: SAC Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
1300	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information	0	1		Used
1350	CUR	Currency	0	1		Used

SAC Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information

Pos: 1300 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SAC Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Used

To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Na	<u>me</u>	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>	
SAC01	248	Allowance of	or Charge Indicator	M	ID	1/1	Must use	
		Description	: Code which indicates an allowan	ce or ch	arge for	the service sp	ecified	
		<u>Code</u> N	Name No Allowance or Charge					
SAC02	1300	Service, Pro Code	omotion, Allowance, or Charge	М	ID	4/4	Must use	
		Description: Code identifying the service, promotion, allowance, or charge						
		<u>Code</u> ZZZZ	Name Mutually Defined					
SAC09	355	Unit or Basi	s for Measurement Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used	
		•	: Code specifying the units in whic surement has been taken	h a valu	e is bein	g expressed, o	or manner in	
		<u>Code</u> EA	<u>Name</u> Each					
SAC10	380	Quantity		Χ	R	1/15	Used	
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity					
SAC15	352	Description		Χ	AN	1/80	Used	
		Description	: A free-form description to clarify	the relat	ed data	elements and	their content	

Syntax Rules:

1. P0910 - If either SAC09 or SAC10 is present, then the other is required.

CUR Currency

Pos: 1350 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SAC Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify the currency (dollars, pounds, francs, etc.) used in a transaction

<u>Ref</u> CUR01	<u>ld</u> 98		Element Name Entity Identifier Code		<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 2/3	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description individual	n: Code identifying an organization	al entity,	a physic	al location, pro	perty or an
		<u>Code</u> BY	<u>Name</u> Buying Party (Purchaser)				
CUR02	100	Currency C	Code	М	ID	3/3	Must use
Description: Code (Standard ISO) for country in whose currency the charges a						are specified	

SDQ Destination Quantity

Pos: 1900 Max: 500 Detail - Optional Loop: PO1 Elements: 22

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify destination and quantity detail

<u>Ref</u> SDQ01	<u>ld</u> 355	Element Na Unit or Basi	or Basis for Measurement Code		Type ID	Min/Max 2/2	<u>Usage</u> Must use
			: Code specifying the units in which surement has been taken	ch a valu	e is being	g expressed, o	or manner in
		<u>Code</u> AS EA	Name Assortment Each				
SDQ02	66	Identificatio	n Code Qualifier	М	ID	1/2	Must use
		Description Code (67)	: Code designating the system/me	ethod of	code stru	cture used for	r Identification
		<u>Code</u> 92	Name Assigned by Buyer or Buyer's A	gent			
SDQ03	67	Identificatio	n Code	М	AN	2/80	Must use
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			
SDQ04	380	Quantity		М	R	1/15	Must use
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ05	67	Identificatio	n Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			
SDQ06	380	Quantity		Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ07	67	Identificatio	n Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			
SDQ08	380	Quantity		Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ09	67	Identificatio	n Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			
SDQ10	380	Quantity		Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ11	67	Identificatio		Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description	: Code identifying a party or other	code			
SDQ12	380	Quantity		Χ	R	1/15	Used

		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ13	67	Identification Code	X	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or other	er code			
SDQ14	380	Quantity	Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ15	67	Identification Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or other	er code			
SDQ16	380	Quantity	X	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ17	67	Identification Code	X	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or other	er code			
SDQ18	380	Quantity	Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ19	67	Identification Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or other	er code			
SDQ20	380	Quantity	Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
SDQ21	67	Identification Code	Χ	AN	2/80	Used
		Description: Code identifying a party or other	er code			
SDQ22	380	Quantity	X	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				

Syntax Rules:

- 1. P0506 If either SDQ05 or SDQ06 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0708 If either SDQ07 or SDQ08 is present, then the other is required.
- 3. P0910 If either SDQ09 or SDQ10 is present, then the other is required.
- 4. P1112 If either SDQ11 or SDQ12 is present, then the other is required.
- 4. I TITE II cities obat i or obat i spescrit, then the other is required
- 5. P1314 If either SDQ13 or SDQ14 is present, then the other is required.
- 6. P1516 If either SDQ15 or SDQ16 $\,$ is present, then the other is required.
- 7. P1718 If either SDQ17 or SDQ18 is present, then the other is required.
- 8. P1920 If either SDQ19 or SDQ20 is present, then the other is required.9. P2122 If either SDQ21 or SDQ22 is present, then the other is required.
- **Comments:**
 - 1. SDQ02 is used only if different than previously defined in the transaction set.
 - 2. SDQ03 is the store number.

TC2 Commodity

Pos: 2350 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: PO1 Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To identify a commodity or a group of commodities or a tariff page commodity

Ref TC201	<u>ld</u> 23	Element Name Commodity Code Qualifier	Req M	<u>Type</u> ID	Min/Max 1/1	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Code identifying the comm	ystem us	ed for Commo	odity Code	
		CodeNameJHarmonized System-Base	ed Schedule B			
TC202	22	Commodity Code	М	AN	1/30	Must use
Description: Code describing a commodity or group of commodities						

MTX Text

Pos: 2890 Max: 3 Detail - Optional Loop: PO1 Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify textual data

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	<u>Min/Max</u>	<u>Usage</u>
MTX02	1551	Textual Data	M	AN	1/4096	Must use

Description: To transmit large volumes of message text

Loop SLN

Pos: 4700 Repeat: 1000 Optional

Loop: SLN Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify product subline detail item data

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
4700	SLN	Subline Item Detail	0	1		Used
4750	MTX	Text	0	1		Used
4900	PID	Product/Item Description	0	4		Used
5050	TC2	Commodity	0	1		Used
5160	CTP	Pricing Information	0	1		Used
5260		Loop SAC	0		1	Used

SLN Subline Item Detail

Pos: 4700 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SLN Elements: 11

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify product subline detail item data

<u>Ref</u> SLN01	<u>ld</u> 350	Element Name Assigned Identification	Req M	<u>Type</u> AN	Min/Max 1/20	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description: Alphanumeric characters assign	gned for d	ifferentia	tion within a tra	nsaction set
SLN03	662	Relationship Code	М	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description: Code indicating the relationship	ip betweei	n entities		
		Code Name Included				
SLN04	380	Quantity	X	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
SLN05	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	Х	Comp		Used
	355	use) Comments: 1. If C001-02 is not used, its value is to be ir 2. If C001-03 is not used, its value is to be ir 3. If C001-05 is not used, its value is to be ir 4. If C001-06 is not used, its value is to be ir 5. If C001-08 is not used, its value is to be ir 6. If C001-09 is not used, its value is to be ir 7. If C001-11 is not used, its value is to be ir 8. If C001-12 is not used, its value is to be ir 9. If C001-14 is not used, its value is to be ir 10. If C001-15 is not used, its value is to be Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	nterpreted nterpreted nterpreted nterpreted nterpreted nterpreted nterpreted nterpreted	as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1.	2/2	Must use
	000	Description: Code specifying the units in which a measurement has been taken Code Name				
SLN06	010	EA Each Unit Price	Х	R	1/17	Llood
SLINUO	212	Description: Price per unit of product, servi				Used
SLN09	235	Product/Service ID Qualifier	X	ID	2/2	Used
OLIVOS	200	Description: Code identifying the type/source ID (234) Code Name				
		IN Buyer's Item Number				
SLN10	234	Product/Service ID	X	AN	1/48	Used

		Description: Identifying number for a product or service					
SLN11	235	Product/Se	rvice ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		•	: Code identifying the type/source ovice ID (234)	of the de	escriptive n	umber used in	
		<u>Code</u> VA	<u>Name</u> Vendor's Style Number				
SLN12	234	Product/Se	rvice ID	Χ	AN	1/48	Used
		Description	: Identifying number for a product o	r servic	е		
SLN13	235	Product/Se	rvice ID Qualifier	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		•	: Code identifying the type/source ovice ID (234)	of the de	escriptive n	umber used in	
		<u>Code</u> EN UP	Name EAN/UCC - 13 UCC - 12				
SLN14	234	Product/Se	rvice ID	Χ	AN	1/48	Used
		Description	: Identifying number for a product of	r servic	е		

Syntax Rules:

- 1. P0405 If either SLN04 or SLN05 is present, then the other is required.
- 2. P0910 If either SLN09 or SLN10 is present, then the other is required.
- 3. P1112 If either SLN11 or SLN12 is present, then the other is required.
- 4. P1314 If either SLN13 or SLN14 is present, then the other is required.

Semantics:

- 1. SLN01 is the identifying number for the subline item.
- 2. SLN03 is the configuration code indicating the relationship of the subline item to the baseline item.

MTX Text

Pos: 4750 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SLN Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify textual data

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
MTX02	1551	Textual Data	X	AN	1/4096	Used

Description: To transmit large volumes of message text

Syntax Rules:

- 1. C0102 If MTX01 is present, then MTX02 is required.
- 2. C0302 If MTX03 is present, then MTX02 is required.
- 3. C0504 If MTX05 is present, then MTX04 is required.

Semantics:

1. MTX05 is the number of lines to advance before printing.

Comments:

1. If MTX04 is "AA - Advance the specific number of lines before print", then MTX05 is required.

PID Product/Item Description

Pos: 4900 Max: 4
Detail - Optional
Loop: SLN Elements: 3

User Option (Usage): Used

To describe a product or process in coded or free-form format

<u>Ref</u> PID01	<u>ld</u> 349	Element Nati		<u>Req</u> M	Type ID	Min/Max 1/1	<u>Usage</u> Must use
		Description	: Code indicating the format of a d	lescription	on		
		<u>Code</u> F	<u>Name</u> Free-form				
PID02	750	Product/Pro	ocess Characteristic Code	М	ID	2/3	Must use
		Description	: Code identifying the general clas	ss of a p	roduct or	process chara	cteristic
		<u>Code</u> 08	Name Product				
		74 75 GEN	Vendor size description Buyer's Color Description General Description				
PID05	352	Description		М	AN	1/80	Must use
		Description	: A free-form description to clarify	the relat	ed data	elements and t	heir content

TC2 Commodity

Pos: 5050 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SLN Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Used

To identify a commodity or a group of commodities or a tariff page commodity

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Na	<u>ame</u>	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
TC201	23	Commodity	y Code Qualifier	M	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description	n: Code identifying the commodity	coding s	ystem us	sed for Commo	dity Code
		<u>Code</u> J	Name Harmonized System-Based Sch	edule B			
TC202	22	Commodity	y Code	М	AN	1/30	Must use
		Description	n: Code describing a commodity or	group o	f commo	dities	

CTP Pricing Information

Pos: 5160 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SLN Elements: 4

User Option (Usage): Used

To specify pricing information

Element Summary:

Ref CTP02	<u>ld</u> 236	Element Name Price Identifier Code	Req X	Type ID	Min/Max 3/3	<u>Usage</u> Used
		Description: Code identifying pricing specific	ation			
		CodeNameRESResale				
CTP03	212	Unit Price	Χ	R	1/17	Used
		Description: Price per unit of product, service	e, comm	odity, etc.		
CTP04	380	Quantity	Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description: Numeric value of quantity				
CTP05	C001	Composite Unit of Measure	Χ	Comp		Used
		Description: To identify a composite unit of muse) Comments: 1. If C001-02 is not used, its value is to be into 2. If C001-03 is not used, its value is to be into 3. If C001-05 is not used, its value is to be into 4. If C001-06 is not used, its value is to be into 5. If C001-08 is not used, its value is to be into 6. If C001-09 is not used, its value is to be into 7. If C001-11 is not used, its value is to be into 9. If C001-12 is not used, its value is to be into 10. If C001-15 is not used, its value is to be into 10. If C001-15 is not used, its value is to be into 10.	erpreted erpreted erpreted erpreted erpreted erpreted erpreted erpreted erpreted	as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1. as 1.	ires Appendix	for examples of
	355	Unit or Basis for Measurement Code	М	ID	2/2	Must use
		Description: Code specifying the units in which a measurement has been taken	ch a valu	ue is bein	g expressed, o	r manner in
		Code Name EA Each				

Syntax Rules:

1. P0405 - If either CTP04 or CTP05 is present, then the other is required.

Loop SAC

Pos: 5260 Repeat: 1

Optional

Loop: SAC Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Used

To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	Req	Max Use	Repeat	<u>Usage</u>
5260	SAC	Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge O	0	1		Used
		Information				

SAC Service, Promotion, Allowance, or Charge Information

Pos: 5260 Max: 1 Detail - Optional Loop: SAC Elements: 5

User Option (Usage): Used

To request or identify a service, promotion, allowance, or charge; to specify the amount or percentage for the service, promotion, allowance, or charge

Element Summary:

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Na	<u>me</u>	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SAC01	248	Allowance of	or Charge Indicator	M	ID	1/1	Must use
		Description	: Code which indicates an allowan	ce or ch	arge for	the service spe	ecified
		<u>Code</u> N	Name No Allowance or Charge				
SAC02	1300	Service, Pro Code	omotion, Allowance, or Charge	М	ID	4/4	Must use
		Description	: Code identifying the service, pror	notion, a	allowanc	e, or charge	
		<u>Code</u> ZZZZ	<u>Name</u> Mutually Defined				
SAC09	355	Unit or Basi	s for Measurement Code	Χ	ID	2/2	Used
		•	: Code specifying the units in whic surement has been taken	h a valu	e is bein	g expressed, o	or manner in
		<u>Code</u> EA	<u>Name</u> Each				
SAC10	380	Quantity		Χ	R	1/15	Used
		Description	: Numeric value of quantity				
SAC15	352	Description		Χ	AN	1/80	Used
		Description	: A free-form description to clarify	the relat	ed data e	elements and t	heir content

Syntax Rules:

1. P0910 - If either SAC09 or SAC10 is present, then the other is required.

Loop CTT

Pos: 0100 Repeat: 1 Mandatory

Loop: CTT Elements: N/A

User Option (Usage): Must use

To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

Loop Summary:

<u>Pos</u>	<u>ld</u>	Segment Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Max Use</u>	<u>Repeat</u>	<u>Usage</u>
0100	CTT	Transaction Totals	M	1		Must use

CTT Transaction Totals

Pos: 0100 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: CTT Elements: 1

User Option (Usage): Must use

To transmit a hash total for a specific element in the transaction set

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	<u>Min/Max</u>	<u>Usage</u>
CTT01	354	Number of Line Items	M	N0	1/6	Must use

Description: Total number of line items in the transaction set

Comments:

1. This segment is intended to provide hash totals to validate transaction completeness and correctness.

SE Transaction Set Trailer

Pos: 0300 Max: 1 Summary - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

To indicate the end of the transaction set and provide the count of the transmitted segments (including the beginning (ST) and ending (SE) segments)

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	<u>Req</u>	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
SE01	96	Number of Included Segments	М	N0	1/10	Must use
		Description: Total number of segments inclusegments	ıded in a	transactio	on set includin	g ST and SE
SE02	329	Transaction Set Control Number	М	AN	4/9	Must use
		Description: Identifying control number that functional group assigned by the originator fo		•		ction set

Comments:

1. SE is the last segment of each transaction set.

GE Functional Group Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

To indicate the end of a functional group and to provide control information

Element Summary:

<u>Ref</u>	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	Type	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
GE01	97	Number of Transaction Sets Included	М	N0	1/6	Must use
		Description: Total number of transaction sets (transmission) group terminated by the trailer			• .	or interchange
GE02	28	Group Control Number	М	N0	1/9	Must use
		Description: Assigned number originated and	d maintai	ined by th	ne sender	

Semantics:

1. The data interchange control number GE02 in this trailer must be identical to the same data element in the associated functional group header, GS06.

Comments:

 The use of identical data interchange control numbers in the associated functional group header and trailer is designed to maximize functional group integrity. The control number is the same as that used in the corresponding header.

IEA Interchange Control Trailer

Pos: Max: 1 Not Defined - Mandatory Loop: N/A Elements: 2

User Option (Usage): Must use

To define the end of an interchange of zero or more functional groups and interchange-related control segments

Ref	<u>ld</u>	Element Name	Req	<u>Type</u>	Min/Max	<u>Usage</u>
IEA01	l16	Number of Included Functional Groups	М	N0	1/5	Must use
		Description: A count of the number of function	nal grou	ps includ	ed in an interc	hange
IEA02	l12	Interchange Control Number	М	N0	9/9	Must use
		Description: A control number assigned by the interchange sender				